

Dear Senators HEIDER, Nuxoll, Bock, and
Representatives WOOD, Perry, Rusche:

The Legislative Services Office, Research and Legislation, has received the enclosed rules of
the Department of Health and Welfare:

IDAPA 16.03.09 - Rules Pertaining To Medicaid Basic Plan Benefits - Missed appointments &
provider info (Docket No. 16-0309-1302);

IDAPA 16.03.09 - Rules Pertaining To Medicaid Basic Plan Benefits - Tobacco cessation (Docket
No. 16-0309-1303).

Pursuant to Section 67-454, Idaho Code, a meeting on the enclosed rules may be called by the
cochairmen or by two (2) or more members of the subcommittee giving oral or written notice to Research
and Legislation no later than fourteen (14) days after receipt of the rules analysis from Legislative
Services. The final date to call a meeting on the enclosed rules is no later than 10/30/2013. If a meeting is
called, the subcommittee must hold the meeting within forty-two (42) days of receipt of the rules analysis
from Legislative Services. The final date to hold a meeting on the enclosed rules is 11/29/2013.

The germane joint subcommittee may request a statement of economic impact with respect to a
proposed rule by notifying Research and Legislation. There is no time limit on requesting this statement,
and it may be requested whether or not a meeting on the proposed rule is called or after a meeting has
been held.

To notify Research and Legislation, call 334-4845, or send a written request to the address on the
memorandum attached below.



Jeff Youtz
Director

Legislative Services Office Idaho State Legislature

Serving Idaho's Citizen Legislature

MEMORANDUM

TO: Rules Review Subcommittee of the Senate Health & Welfare Committee and the House Health & Welfare Committee
FROM: Senior Legislative Research Analyst - Ryan Bush
DATE: October 10, 2013
SUBJECT: Department of Health and Welfare

IDAPA 16.03.09 - Rules Pertaining To Medicaid Basic Plan Benefits - Missed appointments & provider info (Docket No. 16-0309-1302)

IDAPA 16.03.09 - Rules Pertaining To Medicaid Basic Plan Benefits - Tobacco cessation (Docket No. 16-0309-1303)

(1) 16.03.09 - Rules Pertaining To Medicaid Basic Plan Benefits - Missed appointments & provider info (Docket No. 16-0309-1302)

The Department of Health and Welfare submits notice of proposed rulemaking at IDAPA 16.03.09 - Rules Pertaining To Medicaid Basic Plan Benefits - Missed appointments & provider info. The Department states that the proposed rule is to align with changes in federal regulations and to comply with CMS requirements related to missed appointments and clarifies language about provider charges for missed appointments. The Department further states that this rulemaking accomplishes the following:

- (1) Re-validates all provider enrollment information at least every five years;
- (2) Ensures that all providers who prescribe drugs or ordering services for Medicaid participants are enrolled with the agency;
- (3) Ensures that all providers complete a screening process involving site visits and payment of fees for certain providers; and
- (4) Aligns the appeals process for providers denied enrollment with federal requirements.

Specifically, this rulemaking, provides that the Department will not reimburse providers when a participant misses an appointment and providers may not bill participants for missed appointments; revises the provider application process including screening levels, agreements with providers and denial of a provider agreement; clarifies conditions for payments to providers; and removes exceptions to the requirement for Medicare certification for reimbursement for therapy services.

The Department states that negotiated rulemaking was not conducted because these changes are being done to comply with federal requirements. Public hearings will be held on October 15 in Boise, October 17 in Pocatello and October 18 in Coeur d'Alene. There is no fiscal impact associated with this rulemaking.

The proposed rule appears to be within the statutory authority granted to the Department in Sections 56-202(b) and 56-253, Idaho Code, and within federal regulations.

(2) 16.03.09 - Rules Pertaining To Medicaid Basic Plan Benefits - Tobacco cessation (Docket No. 16-0309-1303)

The Department of Health and Welfare submits notice of proposed rulemaking at IDAPA 16.03.09 - Rules Pertaining To Medicaid Basic Plan Benefits - Tobacco cessation. The Department states that this rule change is to comply with requirements in the Affordable Care Act. Specifically, this rulemaking requires tobacco cessation counseling for all non-pregnant Medicaid eligible adults over the age of twenty-one who had not been previously covered and provides required coverage of tobacco cessation drug benefits for all Medicaid eligible participants effective January 1, 2014.

The Department states that negotiated rulemaking was not conducted because this rule change will be published as temporary with the pending rule in the January 2014 Idaho Administrative Bulletin and is being done to comply with federal regulations. A public hearing will be held in Boise on October 15. There is no fiscal impact associated with this rulemaking.

The proposed rule appears to be within the statutory authority granted to the Department in Section 56-202(b), Idaho Code, and in accordance with Section 2502(a)(2) of the Affordable Care Act.

cc: Department of Health and Welfare
Tamara Prisock
Jeanne Siroky
Arla Farmer

IDAPA 16 - DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND WELFARE

16.03.09 - MEDICAID BASIC PLAN BENEFITS

DOCKET NO. 16-0309-1302

NOTICE OF RULEMAKING - PROPOSED RULE

AUTHORITY: In compliance with Section 67-5221(1), Idaho Code, notice is hereby given that this agency has initiated proposed rulemaking procedures. The action is authorized pursuant to Sections 56-202, 56-203, 56-250 through 56-257, and 56-260 through 56-266, Idaho Code; also 42 CFR 447.90 - Credible allegations of fraud; 42 CFR 455 - Provider Screening and Enrollment; and 42 CFR 498 - Appeal rights; and Subtitle E, Section 6401 of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (Affordable Care Act).

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: Public hearings concerning this rulemaking will be held as follows:

Tuesday, October 15, 2013 at 2:00 p.m. MDT
Medicaid Central Office Conference Room D-East 3232 Elder St, Boise, ID
You may also participate in this hearing via conference call: Call-in Number: 1-888-706-6468 When prompted, enter Participant ID: 8617015

Thursday, October 17, 2013 at 2:00 p.m. MDT
IDHW Region VI Office 2nd Floor Conf. Room 1070 Hiline Road Pocatello, ID

Friday, October 18, 2013 at 2:00 p.m. PDT
IDHW Region I Office Suite 102, (lower level large conference room) 1120 Ironwood Drive Coeur d'Alene, ID

The hearing site(s) will be accessible to persons with disabilities. Requests for accommodation must be made not later than five (5) days prior to the hearing, to the agency address below.

DESCRIPTIVE SUMMARY: The following is a nontechnical explanation of the substance and purpose of the proposed rulemaking:

The proposed rule changes are being done to align with changes in federal regulations and to comply with CMS requirements related to missed appointments.

The proposed rule changes will align state rules with federal regulations in 42 CFR 447.90, 42 CFR 455, and 42 CFR 498 that require the Medicaid agency to:

1. Re-validate all provider enrollment information no less frequently than every five (5) years;
2. Ensure all providers prescribing drugs or ordering services for Medicaid participants are enrolled with the agency;
3. Ensure that all providers complete a screening process involving site visits and payment of fees for certain types of providers, either through the Medicaid agency itself or through Medicare; and
4. Align the appeals process for providers denied enrollment with federal requirements.

This rule change will also clarify language about provider charges for missed appointments in accordance with federal requirements.

FEE SUMMARY: Pursuant to Section 67-5226(2), the Governor has found that the fee or charge being imposed or increased is justified and necessary to avoid immediate danger and the fee is described herein: NA

FISCAL IMPACT: The following is a specific description, if applicable, of any fiscal impact on the state general fund greater than ten thousand dollars (\$10,000) during the fiscal year:

These changes will be accomplished with existing resources and modifications to existing operational processes and are expected to be cost neutral.

NEGOTIATED RULEMAKING: Pursuant to Section 67-5220(2), Idaho Code, negotiated rulemaking was not conducted because it was not feasible due to the fact that these rule changes are being done to comply with federal requirements under 42 CFR. The Department has selected the means of compliance that are the least burdensome and the least costly to both providers and the state.

INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE: No materials are being incorporated by reference into these rules.

ASSISTANCE ON TECHNICAL QUESTIONS, SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN COMMENTS: For assistance on technical questions concerning the temporary and proposed rule, contact Jeanne Siroky at (208) 364-1897.

Anyone may submit written comments regarding the proposed rulemaking. All written comments must be directed to the undersigned and must be delivered on or before October 23, 2013.

DATED this 30th day of August, 2013.

Tamara Prisock
DHW - Administrative Rules Unit
450 W. State Street - 10th Floor
P.O. Box 83720
Boise, ID 83720-0036
phone: (208) 334-5500; fax: (208) 334-6558
email: dhwrules@dhw.idaho.gov

THE FOLLOWING IS THE PROPOSED TEXT OF DOCKET NO. 16-0309-1302

160. RESPONSIBILITY FOR KEEPING APPOINTMENTS.

The participant is solely responsible for making and keeping an appointment with the provider. ~~If a participant makes an appointment and subsequently does not keep it, the participant may be required to pay the provider an amount established by the provider's missed appointment policy that is applicable to all patients of the provider.~~ **The**

Department will not reimburse providers when participants do not attend scheduled appointments. Providers may not bill participants for missed appointments. (4-2-08)()

(BREAK IN CONTINUITY OF SECTIONS)

200. PROVIDER APPLICATION PROCESS.

01. Provider Application. ~~Providers may apply for provider numbers with the Department. Those in-state providers who have previously been assigned a Medicare number may retain that same number. The Department will confirm the status for all applicants with the appropriate licensing board and assign Medicaid provider numbers. Providers who meet Medicaid enrollment requirements may apply for Idaho Medicaid provider status with the Department. All healthcare providers who are eligible for a National Provider Identifier (NPI) must apply using that identifying number. For providers not eligible for a NPI, the Department will assign a provider number upon approval of the application.~~ (3-30-07)()

02. Denial of Provider Application Screening Levels. ~~The Department must not accept the application of a provider who is suspended from Medicare or Medicaid in another state. In accordance with 42 CFR 455.450, the Department will assign risk levels of "limited," "moderate," or "high" to defined groups of providers. These assignments and definitions will be published in the provider handbook.~~ (3-30-07)()

03. Medicare Enrollment Requirement for Specified Providers. The following providers must enroll as Medicare providers prior to enrollment or revalidation as a Medicaid provider. ()

a. Any providers classified in the "moderate" or "high" categorical risk level, as defined in the provider handbook. ()

b. Any provider type classified as an institutional provider by Medicare. ()

04. Disclosure of Information by Providers and Fiscal Agents. All enrolling providers and their fiscal agents must comply with the disclosure requirements as stated in 42 CFR 455, Subpart B, "Disclosure of Information by Providers and Fiscal Agents." ()

05. Denial of Provider Agreement. The Department may deny provider status by refusing a request to enter into a provider agreement, refusing to extend an existing agreement, or refusing to enter into additional agreements with any individual or entity. Reasons for denying provider status include those described in IDAPA 16.05.07, "The Investigation and Enforcement of Fraud, Abuse, and Misconduct," Section 265. ()

06. Mandatory Denial of Provider Agreement. The Department will deny a request for a provider agreement when: ()

a. The provider fails to meet the qualifications required by rule or by any applicable licensing board; ()

b. The provider was a managing employee, or had an ownership interest, as defined in 42 CFR Section 455.101, in any entity that was previously found by the Department to have engaged in fraudulent conduct, or abusive conduct related to the Medicaid program, or has demonstrated an inability to comply with the requirements related to the provider status for which application is made, including submitting false claims or violating provisions of any provider agreement; ()

c. The provider was a managing employee, or had an ownership interest, as defined in 42 CFR Section 455.101, in any entity that failed to repay the Department for any overpayments, or to repay claims previously found by the Department to have been paid improperly, whether the failure resulted from refusal, bankruptcy, or otherwise, unless prohibited by law; ()

d. The provider employs as a managing employee, contracts for any management services, shares any ownership interests, or would be considered a related party to any individual or entity identified in Subsections 200.06.a. through 200.06.c. of this rule. ()

e. The provider fails to comply with any applicable requirement under 42 CFR 455. ()

f. The provider is precluded from enrollment due to a temporary moratorium issued by the Secretary of Health and Human Services in accordance with 42 CFR 455.470. ()

g. The provider is currently suspended from Medicare or Medicaid in any state, or has been terminated from Medicare or Medicaid in any state. ()

201. -- 204. (RESERVED)

205. AGREEMENTS WITH PROVIDERS.

01. In General. ~~The Department will enter into written agreements with each provider or group of providers of supplies or services under the Program. All individuals or organizations must enter into a written provider agreement accepted by the Department prior to receipt of any reimbursement for services.~~ Agreements may contain any terms or conditions deemed appropriate by the Department. ~~Each agreement will contain, among others, the following terms and conditions requiring the provider: All provider agreements must be signed by the provider or by an owner or officer who has the legal authority to bind the provider in the agreement.~~ (3-30-07)()

~~a.~~ ~~To retain for a minimum of six (6) years any records necessary for a determination of the services the provider furnishes to participants; and~~ (3-30-07)

~~b.~~ ~~To furnish to the Department, the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, the Fraud Investigation Unit, or the Idaho State Police any information requested regarding payments claimed by the provider for services; and~~ (3-30-07)

~~c.~~ ~~To furnish to the Department, the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, the Fraud Investigation Unit, or the Idaho State Police, information requested on business transactions as follows:~~ (3-30-07)

~~i.~~ ~~Ownership of any subcontractor with whom the provider has had business transactions of more than twenty five thousand dollars (\$25,000) during a twelve (12) month period ending on the date of request; and~~ (3-30-07)

~~ii.~~ ~~Any significant business transactions between the provider and any wholly owned supplier, or between the provider and any subcontractor during the five (5) year period ending on the date of request.~~ (3-30-07)

02. Federal Disclosure Requirements. To comply with the disclosure requirements in 42 CFR 455, Subpart B, each provider, other than an individual practitioner or a group of practitioners, must disclose to the Department: (3-30-07)

a. The full name and address of each individual who has either direct or indirect ownership interest in the disclosing entity or in any subcontractor of five percent (5%) or more prior to entering into an agreement or at the time of survey and certification; and (3-30-07)

b. Whether any person named in the disclosure is related to another person named in the disclosure as a spouse, parent, or sibling. (3-30-07)

03. ~~Termination of~~ Provider Agreements Enforcement Actions and Terminations. Provider agreements may be terminated with or without cause. Terminations for cause may be appealed as a contested case in accordance with the IDAPA 16.05.03, "Rules Governing Contested Case Proceedings and Declaratory Rulings." The Department may, at its discretion, take any of the following actions for cause based on the provider's conduct or the conduct of its employees or agents, or when the provider fails to comply with any term or provision of the provider agreement, or any applicable state or federal regulation: (3-30-07)()

~~a. The Department may, in its discretion, terminate a provider's agreement for cause based on its conduct or the conduct of its employees or agents, when the provider fails to comply with any term or provision of the provider agreement. Other action may also be taken, based on the conduct of the provider as provided in Section 205 of this chapter of rules, and notice of termination must be given as provided therein. Terminations for cause may be appealed as a contested case in accordance with the IDAPA 16.05.03, "Rules Governing Contested Case Proceedings and Declaratory Ruling." Require corrective actions as described in IDAPA 16.05.07, "The Investigation and Enforcement of Fraud, Abuse, and Misconduct," Section 270. (3-30-07)()~~

~~b. Require a corrective action plan to be submitted by the provider to address noncompliance with the provider agreement; ()~~

~~c. Reduce, limit, or suspend payment of claims pending the submission, acceptance, or completion of a corrective action plan; ()~~

~~d. Limit or suspend provision of services to participants who have not previously established services with the provider pending the submission, acceptance, or completion of a corrective action plan; or ()~~

~~e. Terminate the provider's agreement. ()~~

~~**204. Termination of Provider Agreements.** Due to the need to respond quickly to state and federal mandates, as well as the changing needs of the State Plan, the Department may terminate provider agreements without cause by giving written notice to the provider as set forth in the agreement. If an agreement does not provide a notice period, the period is twenty-eight (28) days. Terminations without cause may result from, but are not limited to, elimination or change of programs or requirements, or the provider's inability to continue providing services due to the actions of another agency or board. Terminations without cause are not subject to contested case proceedings since the action will either affect a class of providers, or will result from the discretionary act of another regulatory body. (3-30-07)()~~

~~**04. Denial of Provider Agreement.** The Department may deny provider status by refusing a request to enter into a provider agreement, refusing to extend an existing agreement, or refusing to enter into additional agreements with any individual or entity, that: (3-30-07)~~

~~a. Fails to meet the qualifications required by rule or by any applicable licensing board; (3-30-07)~~

~~b. Has previously been, or was a managing employee, or had an ownership interest, as defined in 42 C.F.R Section 455.101, in any entity which was previously found by the Department to have engaged in fraudulent conduct, or abusive conduct related to the Medicaid program or has demonstrated an inability to comply with the requirements related to the provider status for which application is made, including, but not limited to submitting false claims or violating provisions of any provider agreement; (3-30-07)~~

~~c. Has failed, or was a managing employee, or had an ownership interest, as defined in 42 C.F.R Section 455.101, in any entity that failed to repay the Department for any overpayments, or to repay claims previously found by the Department to have been paid improperly, whether the failure resulted from refusal, bankruptcy, or otherwise, unless prohibited by law; or (3-30-07)~~

~~d. Employs as a managing employee, contracts for any management services, shares any ownership interests, or would be considered a related party to any individual or entity identified in Subsections 205.04.a through 205.04.e., of this rule. (3-30-07)~~

206. -- 209. (RESERVED)

210. CONDITIONS FOR PAYMENT.

01. Participant Eligibility. The Department will reimburse providers for medical care and services, regardless of the current eligibility status of the medical assistance participant in the month of payment, provided ~~that~~ a complete and properly submitted claim for payment has been received and each of the following conditions are met:

(3-30-07)()

a. The participant was found eligible for medical assistance for the month, day, and year during which the medical care and services were rendered; (3-30-07)

b. The participant received such medical care and services no earlier than the third month before the month in which application was made on such participant's behalf; and (3-30-07)

c. The provider verified the participant's eligibility on the date the service was rendered and can provide proof of the eligibility verification. ()

ed. Not more than twelve (12) months have elapsed since the month of the latest participant services for which such payment is being made. Medicare cross-over claims are excluded from the twelve (12) month submittal limitation. (3-30-07)

02. Time Limits. The time limit set forth in Subsection 210.01.ed. of this rule does not apply with respect to retroactive eligibility adjustment ~~payments~~. When participant eligibility is determined retroactively, the Department will reimburse providers for services within the period of retroactive eligibility if a claim for those services is submitted within twelve (12) months of the date of the participant's eligibility determination. (3-30-07)()

03. Acceptance of State Payment. By participating in the Medical Assistance Program, providers agree to accept, as payment in full, the amounts paid by the Department for services to Medicaid participants. Providers also agree to provide all materials and services without unlawfully discriminating on the grounds of race, age, sex, creed, color, national origin, or physical or intellectual disability. (3-30-07)

04. Payment in Full. If a provider accepts Medicaid payment for a covered service, the Medicaid payment must be accepted as full payment for that service, and the participant cannot be billed for the difference between the billed amount and the Medicaid allowed amount. (3-30-07)

05. Medical Care Provided Outside the State of Idaho. Out-of-state medical care is subject to the same utilization review and other Medicaid coverage requirements and restrictions as medical care received within the state of Idaho. (3-30-07)

06. Ordering, Prescribing, and Referring Providers. Any service or supply ordered, prescribed, or referred by a physician or other professional who is not an enrolled Medicaid provider will not be reimbursed by the Department. ()

(BREAK IN CONTINUITY OF SECTIONS)

~~342. -- 349. (RESERVED)~~

~~**350. CRITERIA FOR PARTICIPATION IN THE MEDICAID PROGRAM.**~~

~~**01. Application for Participation and Reimbursement.** Prior to participation in the Medicaid Program, the Department must certify a facility for participation in the Program. Their recommendations are forwarded to the Division of Welfare, Division of Medicaid or its successor organization, for approval. The Division of Medicaid or its successor organization issues a provider number to the facility which becomes the primary provider identification number. The Division of Medicaid or its successor organization will need to establish an interim rate for the new applicant facility. This facility is now authorized to offer services at the level for which the provider agreement was issued.~~ (3-30-07)

~~**02. Reimbursement.** The reimbursement mechanism for payment to providers that Medicaid reimburses under a cost-based methodology under Sections 300 through 389 of these rules. The Medical Assistance~~

~~Program will not reimburse a facility until it is certified, has a signed agreement for participation and an established interim per diem rate.~~ (3-30-07)

~~351.~~ 359. (RESERVED)

(BREAK IN CONTINUITY OF SECTIONS)

735. THERAPY SERVICES: PROVIDER REIMBURSEMENT.

01. Payment for Therapy Services. The payment for therapy includes the use of therapeutic equipment to provide the modality or therapy. No additional charge may be made to either the Medicaid program or the participant for the use of such equipment. (4-2-08)

02. Payment Procedures. Payment procedures are as follows: (3-30-07)

a. Therapy provided by home health agencies will be paid at a per visit rate as described in Section 725 of these rules and in accordance with IDAPA 16.03.07, "Rules for Home Health Agencies." (4-2-08)

b. Therapists ~~identified by Medicare~~ enrolled with Medicaid as independent practitioners, ~~and licensed by the appropriate state licensing board and enrolled as Medicaid providers~~ will be reimbursed on a fee-for-service basis. ~~Exceptions to the requirement for Medicare certification include:~~ (5-8-09)

~~i. Provider types that Medicare does not certify as is the case for speech language pathologists; and~~ (5-8-09)

~~ii. Providers that only treat pediatric participants and do not expect to treat Medicare participants.~~ (5-8-09)

~~iii.~~ Only those independent practitioners who have been enrolled as Medicaid providers can bill the Department directly for their services. A therapy assistant cannot bill Medicaid directly. The maximum fee will be based upon the Department's fee schedule, available from the central office for the Division of Medicaid, the contact information for which is found in Section 005 of these rules. (5-8-09)()

c. Therapy rendered on-site to hospital inpatients or outpatients will be paid at a rate not to exceed the payment determined as reasonable cost using Title XVIII (Medicare) standards and principles. (4-2-08)

d. Payment for therapy services rendered to participants in long-term care facilities is included in the facility reimbursement as described in IDAPA 16.03.10, "Medicaid Enhanced Plan Benefits." (7-1-13)

e. Payment for therapy services rendered to participants in school-based services is described in Section 855 of these rules. (4-2-08)

f. Payment for therapy services rendered by the Idaho Infant Toddler Program will be reimbursed on a fee-for-service basis. (7-1-13)

IDAPA 16 - DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND WELFARE

16.03.09 - MEDICAID BASIC PLAN BENEFITS

DOCKET NO. 16-0309-1303

NOTICE OF RULEMAKING - PROPOSED RULE

AUTHORITY: In compliance with Section 67-5221(1), Idaho Code, notice is hereby given that this agency has initiated proposed rulemaking procedures. The action is authorized pursuant to Sections 56-202, 56-203, 56-250 through 56-257, and 56-260 through 56-266, Idaho Code; also the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (Affordable Care Act - P.L. 111-148), Section 2502(a)(2).

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: A public hearing concerning this rulemaking will be held as follows:

Tuesday, October 15, 2013 at 11:00 a.m. MDT
Medicaid Central Office Conference Room D-East 3232 Elder St, Boise, ID

The hearing site(s) will be accessible to persons with disabilities. Requests for accommodation must be made not later than five (5) days prior to the hearing, to the agency address below.

DESCRIPTIVE SUMMARY: The following is a nontechnical explanation of the substance and purpose of the proposed rulemaking:

Changes to federal laws governing Medicaid programs require all states to cover tobacco cessation drug benefits for all Medicaid eligible participants effective January 1, 2014.

This rule change will add the federally required tobacco cessation counseling for all non-pregnant Medicaid eligible adults over the age of 21. These products are already covered for pregnant women and children under age 21.

FEE SUMMARY: Pursuant to Section 67-5226(2), the Governor has found that the fee or charge being imposed or increased is justified and necessary to avoid immediate danger and the fee is described herein: NA

FISCAL IMPACT: The following is a specific description, if applicable, of any fiscal impact on the state general fund greater than ten thousand dollars (\$10,000) during the fiscal year:

These benefits are already available to Medicaid participants through the Preventive Health Assistance (PHA) program. These rules shift coverage from that program to pharmacy coverage and the net impact is expected to be cost neutral.

NEGOTIATED RULEMAKING: Pursuant to Section 67-5220(2), Idaho Code, negotiated rulemaking was not conducted because it was not feasible due to the fact that these rule changes will be publishing as Temporary. Note that the Temporary rule will publish with the pending rule in the January 2014, Idaho Administrative Bulletin. The temporary rule is being done to comply with the requirements in the Affordable Care Act that add mandatory coverage for tobacco cessation drug benefits under Medicaid programs, effective January 1, 2014.

INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE: No materials are being incorporated by reference into these rules.

ASSISTANCE ON TECHNICAL QUESTIONS, SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN COMMENTS: For assistance on technical questions concerning the proposed rule, contact Arla Farmer (208) 364-1958.

Anyone may submit written comments regarding the proposed rulemaking. All written comments must be directed to the undersigned and must be delivered on or before October 23, 2013.

DATED this 30th day of August, 2013.

Tamara Prisock
DHW - Administrative Rules Unit
450 W. State Street - 10th Floor
P.O. Box 83720
Boise, ID 83720-0036
phone: (208) 334-5500; fax: (208) 334-6558
email: dhwrules@dhw.idaho.gov

THE FOLLOWING IS THE PROPOSED TEXT OF DOCKET NO. 16-0309-1303

620. PREVENTIVE HEALTH ASSISTANCE (PHA): DEFINITIONS.

01. Behavioral PHA. Benefits available to a participant specifically to support ~~tobacco cessation or~~ weight control. (3-30-07)()

02. Benefit Year. A benefit year is twelve (12) continuous months. A participant's PHA benefit year begins the date his initial points are earned. (3-30-07)

03. PHA Benefit. A mechanism to reward healthy behaviors and good health choices of a participant eligible for preventive health assistance. (3-30-07)

04. Wellness PHA. Benefits available to a participant to support wellness ~~and safety.~~ (3-30-07)()

621. PREVENTIVE HEALTH ASSISTANCE (PHA): PARTICIPANT ELIGIBILITY.

01. Behavioral PHA. The participant must have a Health Questionnaire on file with the Department. The Health Questionnaire is used to determine eligibility for a Behavioral PHA. The participant must indicate on the Health Questionnaire that he wants to change a behavior related to weight management ~~or tobacco cessation.~~ The participant must meet one of the following criteria: (3-30-07)()

a. For an adult, a body mass index (BMI) of thirty (30) or higher or eighteen and one-half (18 1/2) or lower. (3-30-07)

b. For a child, a body mass index (BMI) that falls in either the overweight or the underweight category as calculated using the Centers for Disease Control (CDC) Child and Teen BMI Calculator. (3-30-07)

~~**e.** For either an adult or a child, use of tobacco products.~~ (3-30-07)

02. Wellness PHA. A participant who is required to pay premiums to maintain eligibility under IDAPA 16.03.01, "Eligibility for Health Assistance for Families and Children," is eligible for Wellness PHA. (3-30-07)

622. PREVENTIVE HEALTH ASSISTANCE (PHA): COVERAGE AND LIMITATIONS.

01. Point System. The PHA benefit uses a point system to track points earned and used by a participant. Each point equals one (1) dollar. (3-29-10)

a. Maximum Benefit Points. (3-30-07)

i. The maximum number of points that can be earned for a Behavioral PHA is two hundred (200) points each benefit year. (3-30-07)

ii. The maximum number of points that can be earned for a Wellness PHA benefit is one hundred twenty (120) points each benefit year. (3-30-07)

~~b. Each participant is limited to one (1) Behavioral PHA benefit at any point in time. (3-30-07)~~

~~eb.~~ Points expire and are removed from a participant's PHA benefit at the end of the participant's benefit year. (3-30-07)

~~dc.~~ Points earned for a specific participant's PHA benefit cannot be transferred to or combined with points in another participant's PHA benefit. (3-30-07)

~~02. Medications and Pharmaceutical Supplies. Medications and pharmaceutical supplies must be purchased from a licensed pharmacy. (3-30-07)~~

~~a. Each medication and pharmaceutical supply must have a primary purpose directly related to weight management or tobacco cessation. (3-30-07)~~

~~b. Each medication and pharmaceutical supply must be approved by the FDA, or specifically recommended by the participant's PCP, or a referred physician specialist. (3-30-07)~~

~~032.~~ **Weight Management Program.** Each program must provide weight management services and must include a curriculum that includes at least one (1) of the three (3) following areas: (3-30-07)

a. Physical fitness; (3-30-07)

b. Balanced diet; or (3-30-07)

c. Personal health education. (3-30-07)

~~043.~~ **Participant Request for Coverage.** A participant can request that a previously unidentified ~~product or~~ service be covered. The Department will approve a request if the product or service meets the requirements described in this section of rule and the vendor meets the requirements in Section 624 of these rules. (3-30-07)()

~~054.~~ **Premiums.** (3-30-07)

a. Wellness PHA benefit points must be used to offset a participant's premiums. (3-29-10)

b. Only premiums that must be paid to maintain eligibility under IDAPA 16.03.01, "Eligibility for Health Assistance for Families and Children" can be offset by PHA benefit points. (3-30-07)

~~065.~~ **Hearing Rights.** A participant does not have hearing rights for issues arising between the participant and a chosen vendor. (3-30-07)

623. PREVENTIVE HEALTH ASSISTANCE (PHA): PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS.

01. Behavioral PHA. (3-30-07)

a. A PHA benefit will be established for each participant who meets the eligibility criteria for Behavioral PHA. A participant must complete a PHA Benefit Agreement Form prior to earning any points. (3-30-07)

~~b. Each participant who chooses a goal of tobacco cessation must enroll in a tobacco cessation program. (3-30-07)~~

eb. Each participant who chooses ~~a goal of~~ **to enroll in** weight management must participate in a physician approved or monitored weight management program. (3-30-07)()

ec. An initial one hundred (100) points are earned when the agreement form is received by the Department and the benefit is established. (3-30-07)

ed. An additional one hundred (100) points can be earned by a participant who completes his program or reaches a chosen, defined goal. The vendor monitoring the participant's progress must verify that the program was completed or the goal was reached. (3-30-07)

02. Wellness PHA. (3-30-07)

a. A PHA benefit will be established for each participant who meets the eligibility criteria for Wellness PHA. Each participant must demonstrate that he has received recommended wellness visits and immunizations for his age prior to earning any points. (3-30-07)

b. Ten (10) points can be earned each month by a participant who receives all recommended wellness visits and immunizations for his age during the benefit year. (3-29-10)

03. Approved Products and Services. The reimbursable products and services of each vendor must be prior approved by the Department. (3-30-07)

(BREAK IN CONTINUITY OF SECTIONS)

662. PRESCRIPTION DRUGS: COVERAGE AND LIMITATIONS.

01. General Drug Coverage. The Department will pay for those prescription drugs not excluded by Subsection 662.04 of these rules which are legally obtainable by the order of a licensed prescriber whose licensing allows for the prescribing of legend drugs, as defined under Section 54-1705(28), Idaho Code, and which are deemed medically necessary as defined in Section 011 of these rules. (3-30-07)

02. Dispensing Fee. Dispensing Fee is defined as the cost of filling a prescription including direct pharmacy overhead, and is for all services pertaining to the usual practice of pharmacy, including: (4-4-13)

a. Interpretation, evaluation, compounding, and dispensing of prescription drug orders; (3-30-07)

b. Participation in drug selection; (3-30-07)

c. Drug administration; (3-30-07)

d. Drug regimen and research reviews; (3-30-07)

e. Proper storage of drugs; (3-30-07)

f. Maintenance of proper records; (3-30-07)

g. Prescriber interaction; and (3-30-07)

h. Patient counseling. (3-30-07)

03. Limitations on Payment. Medicaid payment for prescription drugs will be limited as follows: (3-30-07)

a. Days' Supply. Medicaid will not cover any days' supply of prescription drugs that exceeds the

quantity or dosage allowed by these rules. (3-30-07)

b. Brand Name Drugs. Medicaid will not pay for a brand name product that is part of the federal upper limit (FUL) or state maximum allowable cost (SMAC) listing when the physician has not specified the brand name drug to be medically necessary. (3-30-07)

c. Medication for Multiple Persons. When the medication dispensed is for more than one (1) person, Medicaid will only pay for the amount prescribed for the person or persons covered by Medicaid. (3-30-07)

d. No Prior Authorization. Medicaid will not pay for a covered drug or pharmacy item that requires, but has not received, prior authorization for Medicaid payment as required in Section 663 of these rules. (3-30-07)

e. Limitations to Discourage Waste. Medicaid may conduct drug utilization reviews and impose limitations for participants whose drug utilization exceeds the standard participant profile or disease management guidelines determined by the Department. (3-30-07)

04. Excluded Drug Products. The following categories and specific products are excluded from coverage by Medicaid: (3-30-07)

a. Non-Legend Medications. Federal legend medications that change to non-legend status, as well as their therapeutic equivalents regardless of prescription, status unless: (3-30-07)

i. They are included in Subsection 662.05.b. of these rules; or (3-30-07)

ii. The Director determines that non-legend drug products are covered based upon appropriate criteria including the following: safety, effectiveness, clinical outcomes of the drug in comparison with other therapeutically interchangeable alternative drugs, cost, and the recommendation of the Pharmacy And Therapeutics Committee. Therapeutically interchangeable is defined in Subsection 663.01.e. of these rules. (3-30-07)

b. Legend Drugs. Any legend drugs for which federal financial participation is not available. (3-30-07)

c. Diet Supplements. Diet supplements and weight loss products, except lipase inhibitors when prior authorized as outlined in Section 663 of these rules. (3-30-07)

d. Amphetamines and Related Products. Amphetamines and related products for cosmetic purposes or weight loss. Amphetamines and related products which are deemed to be medically necessary may be covered if prior authorized as outlined in Section 663 of these rules. (3-30-07)

e. Ovulation/Fertility Drugs. Ovulation stimulants, fertility drugs, and similar products. (3-30-07)

f. Impotency Aids. Impotency aids, either as medication or prosthesis. (3-30-07)

~~**g.** Tobacco Cessation Products. Nicotine chewing gum, sprays, inhalers, transdermal patches and related products, with the exception that both legend and non-legend tobacco cessation products will be covered for children and pregnant women when prescribed by their physician. (4-4-13)~~

~~**h.g.** Medications Utilized for Cosmetic Purposes. Medications utilized for cosmetic purposes or hair growth. Prior authorization may be granted for these medications if the Department finds other medically necessary indications. (3-30-07)~~

~~**h.** Vitamins. Vitamins unless included in Subsection 662.05.a. of these rules. (3-30-07)~~

~~**i.** Dual Eligibles. Drug classes covered under Medicare, Part D, for Medicaid participants who are also eligible for Medicare. (3-30-07)~~

05. Additional Covered Drug Products. Additional drug products will be allowed as follows:

- (3-30-07)
- a. Therapeutic Vitamins. Therapeutic vitamins may include: (3-30-07)
 - i. Injectable vitamin B12 (cyanocobalamin and analogues); (3-30-07)
 - ii. Vitamin K and analogues; (3-30-07)
 - iii. Pediatric legend vitamin-fluoride preparations; (3-30-07)
 - iv. Legend prenatal vitamins for pregnant or lactating women; (3-30-07)
 - v. Legend folic acid; (3-30-07)
 - vi. Oral legend drugs containing folic acid in combination with Vitamin B12 and/or iron salts, without additional ingredients; (4-4-13)
 - vii. Legend vitamin D and analogues; and (4-4-13)
 - viii. Legend ~~smoking tobacco~~ cessation products ~~for pregnant women and children.~~ (4-4-13)()
 - b. Prescriptions for Nonlegend Products. Prescriptions for nonlegend products may include: (3-30-07)
 - i. Insulin; (3-30-07)
 - ii. Disposable insulin syringes and needles; (3-30-07)
 - iii. Oral iron salts; (4-4-13)
 - iv. Permethrin; and (4-4-13)
 - v. ~~Smoking Tobacco~~ cessation products ~~for pregnant women and children.~~ (4-4-13)()
- 06. Limitation of Quantities.** Medication refills provided before at least seventy-five percent (75%) of the estimated days' supply has been utilized are not covered, unless an increase in dosage is ordered. Days' supply is the number of days a medication is expected to last when used at the dosage prescribed for the participant. No more than a thirty-four (34) days' supply of continuously required medication is to be purchased in a calendar month as a result of a single prescription with the following exceptions: (3-30-07)
- a. Doses of Medication. Up to one hundred (100) doses of medication may be dispensed, not to exceed a one hundred (100) day supply for: (3-30-07)
 - i. Cardiac glycosides; (3-30-07)
 - ii. Thyroid replacement hormones; (3-30-07)
 - iii. Prenatal vitamins; (3-30-07)
 - iv. Nitroglycerin products - oral or sublingual; (3-30-07)
 - v. Fluoride and vitamin/fluoride combination products; and (3-30-07)
 - vi. Nonlegend oral iron salts. (3-30-07)
 - b. Oral Contraceptive Products. Oral contraceptive products may be dispensed in a quantity sufficient for one (1), two (2), or three (3) cycles. (3-30-07)